
 

 

 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Wednesday, 17th November, 
2021 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 

 

Guildhall 

 

 



2 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 17 November 2021 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Matthew Lamb (L) 

 
Councillor Alan Amos (C) 

Councillor Dave Carney (Warndon Parish Council) 
Councillor Roger Knight (St. Peter's Parish 
Council) 

Councillor Karen Lawrance (LD) 
Councillor Steve Mackay (C) 

 

Councillor  Dawn Merriman (Warndon  

Parish Council) 
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 
Mr Raymond Needham JP  

(Co-opted Independent Person) 
Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 

Councillor Alan Tidy (St. Peter’s  
Parish Council) 
 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 
Part 1 

(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 

question, or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 23rd June 2021 to be approved and signed. 

 

5. Local Government And Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 

2021  
Page(s): 5 - 12 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Rich Morris, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722502 



4 

 That the Committee consider the Annual Review Letter (Appendix 1) of the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO) for the period covering 1st 

April 2020 to 31st March 2021 for information and comment. 
 

6. Report of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman  

Page(s): 13 - 14 

Contact Officer:  Rich Morris, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 

Tel: 01905 722502 

 That the Committee note any complaints which have received a report, an upheld 
decision or where maladministration has been identified by the Local Government 

and Social Care Ombudsman. 
 

7. Complaints Made Under the Members' Code of Conduct  

Page(s): 15 - 16 

Contact Officer:  Sian Stroud, Corporate Director, Planning and Governance 

Tel: 01905 722017 

 That the Committee note the report. 
 

8. Registers of Members' and Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and Register of 
Interests  

 To review the registers of Members’ and Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register 
of interests. The registers will be available for inspection from 6.30p.m. onwards, 
so that Members can have the opportunity to review them either before or at the 

meeting. 
 

9. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 
 



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
23rd June 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Andrew Roberts in the Chair 

 Councillors A. Amos, Lamb (Vice-Chair), 
Lawrance, Mitchell and Stephen 

Also in Attendance: 

 Mr Roger Knight, St. Peter’s Parish 
Councillor 

Mrs Dawn Merriman, Warndon Parish 
Councillor 

Mr Alan Tidy, St. Peter’s Parish Councillor 
Mr Ray Needham JP, Co-opted Member 
 

 
Officers: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer 

 
Apologies:  
 

Mr Dave Carney, Warndon Parish Councillor 
and Councillor Mackay 

 
 

 
1 Appointment of Substitutes  

 

None. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
None. 

 
3 Public Participation  

 
Chris Thorp addressed the Committee and made a number of proposals for 
amendment to the Council’s complaints policy and procedures. In summary he 

proposed: 
 

 That the Investigating Officer contacts and speaks to the complainant prior 
to commencing any investigation to clarify and confirm all aspects of the 

complaint. 
 

 That a draft of the Investigation Officer’s findings should be provided to the 

complainant for response and/or comment so that the complainant the 
opportunity to rebut any counters  to the matters complained  about. 

 
 That successful complainants are kept regularly informed regarding actions 

that the Council intends to take to put things right post-investigation, and 

the Council makes it clear to all parties what actions it proposes to take in 
order to implement lessons learned. 

 
 That the complaints policy be extended to ensure that members of all 

volunteer groups, forums or committees working to support the Council are 

provided with the same support and benefits through the complaints policy 
and procedures. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 23rd June 2021 2 

 
 

 

Mr. Thorp stated that he was happy to discuss these points in further detail with 
Committee Members. The Chairman thanked Mr. Thorp for his representations, 

which had been noted by the Monitoring Officer. 
 

4 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March 2021 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

5 Annual Report Of The Standards Committee 2020/21  

 
The Committee considered the draft Annual Report of the Standards Committee 

for the Municipal Year 2020/21. The Monitoring Officer highlighted some of the 
main points, including investigations into complaints submitted under the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, Ombudsman Complaints received, the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter, the procedure 
for reporting back on Outside Bodies which had been implemented in 2020, the 

adoption of a revised Code of Conduct for Members and the Local Government 
Association’s revisions to the Model Code of Conduct, published in January 2021 
(it is intended to issue a revised pan-Worcestershire Code in May 2022), the 

review of the Council’s guidance on use of stationery and finally the Member 
training on Ethical Standards which was undertaken in February 2021 as well as 

for newly-elected Councillors. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the draft Annual Report for the 
Municipal Year 2020/21. 
 

6 Reports of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman  
 

The Committee were informed that no reports had been received from the 
Ombudsman since the last meeting of the Committee.  
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report. 
 

7 Complaints Made Under the Members' Code of Conduct  
 
The Committee considered a report on complaints made under the Members’ Code 

of Conduct. The Monitoring Officer presented the report and explained that, since 
the last meeting of the Committee, 1 complaint, received earlier in the year, was 

now under investigation.  
 
In terms of new complaints in this period, 4 had been received, 3 of which related 

to the same subject matter. Each of these complaints was currently under 
assessment. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report. 
 

8 Registers of Members' and Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and Register of 
Interests  

 
The Committee were given the opportunity to review the registers of Members’ 
and Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register of interests. 

Page 2



 23rd June 2021 3 

 
 

 

9 Any Other Business  
 

None. 
 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.25p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Chairman at the meeting on 

17th November 2021 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



  

 

 
 

Report to: Standards Committee, 17th November 2021 
 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 
 

 
Subject: LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL 

REVIEW LETTER 2021 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Standards Committee consider the Annual Review Letter (Appendix 

1) of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO) for the 
period covering 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 for information and 

comment. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 The LG&SCO produce an Annual Review Letter at the end of each year which 

includes a summary of complaints statistics for the Council.  
 

2.2 The data provided in the letter shows the complaints and enquiries the LG&SCO have 

recorded, along with the decisions made with regards to Worcester City Council.  
 

2.3 The data provided in the letter for complaints and enquiries does not always match 
the complaints data that the Council holds and reports.  
 

For example, the LG&SCO letter includes cases where they signpost the complainant 
back to the Council, but in the event that the customer fails to then contact us this 

will not be recorded in our data. Cases are also logged under the time period the 
LG&SCO receive them or make their final decisions which may differ from the time 
period that the Council receives and records them. 

 
2.4 The information included in the Annual Review Letter is also published in the Annual 

Review of Local Government Complaints report which reviews complaints in the last 
year in the local government sector. This report is published on the LG&SCO website. 
 

2.5 Reports are made to each meeting of the Standards Committee on any formal 
reports received from the Ombudsman or when there has been an investigation 

which identified maladministration or a failure in a service. Details of any 
recommendations made and action taken by the Council are included in these 
reports. 

 
3. Complaints against Worcester City Council  

 
3.1 The overall number of complaints and enquiries received by the Ombudsman about 

Worcester City Council has decreased dramatically from 17 in 2019/20 to 5 in 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


  

 

2020/21. However, the Ombudsman did not receive any new casework between 
March and June 2020 in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
3.2 The number of cases where an investigation was carried out by the Ombudsman 

decreased from 5 in 2019/20 to 2 in 2020/21 however, of these investigations 

carried out 100% were upheld. 
 

     Detailed Investigations  

Year In 

complete 

/ invalid 

Advice 

Given 
Referred 

back for local 

resolution 

Closed 

after initial 

enquiry 

Upheld Not 

upheld 
Upheld 

Rate 

(%) 

Total 

16/17 0 0 3 1 0 2 0 6 

17/18 0 0 3 3 1 1 50 8 

18/19 0 0 3 5 2 5 29 15 

19/20 0 0 6 6 5 0 100 17 

20/21 0 0 5 5 2 0 100 5 

Note: The uphold rate shows how often the LG&SCO found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a 

percentage of the total number of detailed investigations completed. 

 
3.3 Two upheld decisions were received against the Council. However, the LG&SCO did 

not produce a report about any cases.  
 
3.4 Upheld case 1:  

Category: Planning & Development  
Decision: Upheld – maladministration and injustice 

Summary of decision: Mr X complained the Council failed to investigate in a timely 
manner when he reported that his neighbour’s extension was not being built in line 

with approved plans. When the Council investigated, the building work was 
complete, and the Council decided it was not expedient to take enforcement action. 
Mr X says the resulting building causes loss of light to his property. 

 
To remedy the injustice, the Ombudsman asked the Council to apologise to Mr X and 

pay Mr X £100 for the delay to responding to his concerns. 
 
The Ombudsman also recommended that the Council improve its service by 

reminding officers that it is their responsibility to identify specific breaches of 
planning conditions, responding in a timely manner to keep proper records for 

decisions even if the decision is that no action should be taken. 
 

3.5 Upheld case 2:  

Category: Planning & Development  
Decision: Upheld – maladministration and injustice 

Summary of decision: The Council gave Mr Y incorrect information about the 
potential to convert a property to a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). Mr Y bought 
the property and lost out as a result of the Council’s error. The Ombudsman 

recommended the Council meet a proportion of the costs Mr Y incurred as a result of 
the error. This remedy is based on refunding Mr Y’s buying and selling fees and plans 

drawn up for HMO conversion. But, the Ombudsman did not consider other costs Mr 
Y sought, should form part of the remedy.  
 

To recognise the error made by the Council led to Mr Y incurring costs to 
purchase an investment property that cannot be used as Mr Y intended, the Council 

agreed to pay Mr Y £15,000.  

Page 6



  

 

 
3.6 In conclusion, since the period covering these decisions all senior officers 

investigating complaints have been given accredited complaints handling training by 
the LG&SCO. There has also been a review of the Planning Service’s practices and 
procedures. 

 

 We continue to monitor and review the complaints we receive in order to improve 
our processes and implement appropriate mitigations to reduce future complaints. 

 

 
 

Ward(s):   None 
Contact Officer: Rich Morris, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer, Email: 

richard.morris@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: Complaints and Feedback Policy   

Page 7

mailto:richard.morris@worcester.gov.uk
http://www.worcester.gov.uk/documents/10499/4719020/Complaints-Policy.pdf/5e16b807-c23e-4ae0-b47f-04eb32314d66


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

21 July 2021 
 
By email 
 
Mr Blake 
Managing Director 
Worcester City Council 
 
Dear Mr Blake 
 
Annual Review letter 2021 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending                      

31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is 

more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect 

on your Council’s performance and plan for the future.  

You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily 

stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on 

vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in 

late June 2020, after a three month pause.  

We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during 

further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an 

individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including 

implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear 

communication with us. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from 

them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused 

statistics on three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s 

actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated.  

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Page 9 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District 

Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about 

councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports 

we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our 

investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and 

is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the 

year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data. 

Supporting complaint and service improvement  

I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint 

functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and 

demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my 

concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when 

investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity, 

status and visibility of local redress systems.  

With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints 

to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich 

evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint 

handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there 

will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years.  

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our  

face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year, 

reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 10

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Worcester City Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/21  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and stopped 

investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints we received 

and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years. 

Complaints upheld 

  

100% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
53% in similar authorities. 

 
 

2                          
upheld decisions 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 2 

detailed investigations for the 
period between 1 April 2020 to 31 

March 2021 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

  

In 100% of cases we were 
satisfied the authority had 
successfully implemented our 
recommendations. 

This compares to an average of 
100% in similar authorities. 

 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 3 
compliance outcomes for the period 
between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 

2021 

• Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should 
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning. 
 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority 

  

In 0% of upheld cases we found 
the authority had provided a 
satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman.  

This compares to an average of 
16% in similar authorities. 

 

0                      
satisfactory remedy decisions 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 2 
detailed investigations for the 

period between 1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2021 

 

100% 

100% 

0% 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 
 

Report to: Standards Committee, 17th November 2021 
 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 
 

 
Subject: REPORTS OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE    

  OMBUDSMAN 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Committee note any complaints which have received a report, an 

upheld decision or where maladministration has been identified by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

 
2. Background 
 

2.1 The Council operates a three stage complaints process which allows for complainants 
to appeal and request further investigation if they are not happy or feel that 

important information has not been taken into account. 
 

Stage I – the initial investigation and response by the service 

Stage II – reviewed by a senior officer within the service 
Stage III – referral to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

 
2.2 The numbers received and response times for all Stage I and Stage II complaints are 

reported on a quarterly basis to the Policy & Resources Committee. 

 
2.3 Once the Ombudsman has investigated a complaint, if resolution is not agreed or 

there is an issue of public interest, a formal report is issued. Reports are made to 
each meeting of the Standards Committee on any reports received. 

 

2.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has a duty to report when there has been an 
investigation which identifies maladministration in the exercise of administrative 

functions or a failure in a service or a failure to provide a service. 
 
3. Ombudsman Decisions  

 
3.1 There have been no reports or upheld decision received or incidents of 

maladministration identified by the Ombudsman since the previous report to this  
Committee on 23rd June 2021. 

 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Rich Morris, Corporate Policy & Strategy Officer 

 Email: richard.morris@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: Worcester City Council Complaints and Feedback Polic   

Page 13 Agenda Item 6

mailto:richard.morris@worcester.gov.uk
https://www.worcester.gov.uk/?option=com_fileman&view=file&routed=1&name=Complaints-Policy.pdf&folder=PDF%20Documents%2FAbout%20your%20council%2FComplaints&container=fileman-files


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Standards Committee, 17th November 2021 
 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 
 

 

Subject: COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Committee note the report. 
 

2. Purpose of Report 
 

2.1 To advise the Committee of any complaints made under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 The Council’s Procedure adopted by the Council in March 2014 provides that a 
complaint will initially be considered by the Monitoring Officer and an Independent 
Person once the Monitoring Officer is in receipt of all relevant information to enable 

an initial assessment of the complaint to take place.  After consulting the 
Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer will decide either to take no action on the 

allegation, to resolve the complaint informally or to arrange an investigation. 
 
4. Complaints 

 
4.1 Since the last meeting of the Committee, 2 new complaints have been received. 

Each is under assessment. 
 
 

 
 

Ward(s):  All 
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer. Tel:  01905 722019 

Background Papers: None 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 15 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Local Government And Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2021
	Appendix 1 - 2021 Worcester City Council - LGSCO Annual Letter

	6 Reports of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
	7 Complaints Made Under the Members' Code of Conduct

